
Shane Flowers___Katie Hardt___Terry Lowe _____Wendall Wilson _____David Gibson____ 
 
Kelli Tipton____ John Wedgeworth ____John Stubbs___Linda Clark___Stanley Hall-Road Superintendent_____ 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Cumberland County Regional Planning Commission Members 
   
FROM: Tommy Lee, Staff Planner 
 
DATE:  October 13, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: October 19, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
The Cumberland County Regional Planning Commission will hold its regularly scheduled meeting on 
Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 5:00 pm at the Cumberland County Courthouse.  The agenda for the planning 
commission meeting is as follows: 
 
1. Call to order. 
2. Approval of September , 2023 minutes. 
3. Public Hearing and Consideration of extending Swan Road from 0.37 miles to 0.93 miles on the county 

road list. 
4. Consideration of eighteen (18) foot front setback variance for Dollar General located on Mayland Road 

and Highway 70N. 
5. Staff Report—Camp Nakanwana Division, Otto Division, Cook Combination and Rick Thompson 

Home Builder, LLC Combination. 
6. Discussion regarding the adoption of the 2024 Cumberland County Road List. 
7. Election of Officers. 
8. Discussion regarding Byrd’s Creek Drive. 
9. Other business as necessary. 
10. Adjourn. 
 
CTL 
 
*See Agenda Review 

 

 

 

 

 



Shane Flowers___Katie Hardt___Terry Lowe _____Wendall Wilson _____David Gibson____ 
 
Kelli Tipton____ John Wedgeworth ____John Stubbs___Linda Clark___Stanley Hall-Road Superintendent_____ 

 
 
    
   AGENDA REVIEW 
                               CUMBERLAND COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 19, 2023 
 
 
Camp Nakanawa Division—Final 
Camp Nakanawa submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of creating one (1) proposed new lot from 
property larger than five (5) acres located near Jr. Camp Road.  The proposed new lot would consist of 0.77 
acres and an existing residential structure. The proposed new lot will have access to Jr. Camp Road via a 
twenty-five (25) foot ingress/egress easement. The proposed new lot would be served by an existing six (6) inch 
water line and would comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
Otto Division—Final 
Josh Otto submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of creating one (1) proposed new lot from property 
larger than five (5) acres located on Plateau Road.  The proposed new lot would consist of 3.84 acres, an 
existing residential structure and an existing accessory structure. The proposed new lot would be served by an 
existing eight (8) inch water line and would comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
Cook Combination—Final 
Wendell Cook submitted a final combination plat for the purpose of creating one (1) proposed new lot from 
two (2) existing lots located on Havenridge Place and Havenridge Circle. The proposed new lot would 
consist of 1.02 acres and an existing residential structure. The proposed new lot would be served by 
an existing six (4) inch water line, an existing two (2) inch sewer line and would comply with all Cumberland 
County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
Rick Thompson Home Builder, LLC Combination—Final 
Rick Thompson Home Builder, LLC submitted a final combination plat for the purpose of creating one (1) 
proposed new lot from two (2) existing lots located on Albemarle Circle. The proposed new lot would 
consist of 0.52 acres and is  currently vacant. The proposed new lot would be served by an existing six 
(6) inch water line, an existing two (2) inch sewer line and would comply with all Cumberland County 
Subdivision Regulations. 
 



                      MINUTES 
CUMBERLAND COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2023 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT      STAFF REPRESENTATIVE 
David Gibson        Tommy Lee, UCDD 
Terry Lowe       
Linda Clark        OTHERS PRESENT 
Wendall Wilson       Charles Cobb 
John Stubbs        Stanley Hall, Road Superintendent 
Katie Hardt        Robert Shepherd 
Kelli Tipton        John Looney 
John Wedgeworth       Larry Seiber 
Shane Flowers        Roy Meadows 
         Taylor Dillehay 
MEMBERS ABSENT      Donald Brian Beech 
None         Donnie Hall 
         Darrell Threet 
                
ITEM 1:  CALL TO ORDER 
Upon determining a quorum was present, Chairman Wendall Wilson called the regular meeting of the 
Cumberland County Regional Planning Commission (PC) to order at 5:00 P.M. on September 21, 2023 at the 
Cumberland County Courthouse.  
 
ITEM 2:  APPROVAL OF AUGUST 17, 2023 MINUTES 
After calling the meeting to order, Chairman Wilson asked for approval of the August 17, 2023 minutes. David 
Gibson made a motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the minutes as presented.  Kelli 
Tipton seconded and the motion passed with a vote of all ayes.  
 
ITEM 3:  PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF EXTENDING PARNELL ROAD FROM 
0.37 MILES TO 0.93 MILES ON THE COUNTY ROAD LIST 
At the July 20, 2023 meeting, Staff Planner presented a request on behalf of Brian Beech, Stephan Frantzen and 
Luke Gulczynski to extend Parnell Road from 0.37 miles of maintained road to 0.93 miles of maintained road.  
Staff Planner stated each of the petitioners owns property on Parnell Road that is not maintained by the county.  
Each of the petitioners stated that they assumed that the county maintained that section of the road when they 
purchased their property. Road Superintendent Stanley Hall stated that if the road was extended there could be a 
potential issue with maintaining one section of the right-of-way.  Member Terry Lowe stated that the county has 
maintained that section of Parnell Road for years and is in favor of the extension.  After discussion, Vice-
Chairman Wilson requested that Staff Planner schedule a public hearing for the aforementioned request on 
August 17, 2023 at 5 PM.  At the September 21, 2023 meeting, Chairman Wilson closed the PC and opened a 
public hearing to receive comments regarding the aforementioned request.  John Looney stated that he is the 
owner of Cumberland Mountain Farm LLC and is an affected property owner.  Looney stated that he is not 
opposed to the extension.  With no further public comment, Chairman Wilson closed the public hearing and 
reopened the PC meeting.  After discussion, Terry Lowe made a motion to recommend to the environmental 
committee to extend Parnell Road from 0.37 mile to 0.93 miles on the county road list.  John Stubbs seconded 
and the motion passed with a vote of all ayes. 
 
 



ITEM 4:  PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF EXTENDING KEATING LOOP FROM 
0.26 MILES TO 0.54 MILES ON THE COUNTY ROAD LIST 
At the July 20, 2023 meeting, Road Superintendent Stanley Hall addressed the PC and stated that he would like 
to request the extension of Keating Loop from 0.26 miles to 0.54 miles on the county road list.  Hall stated that 
he believes that the omission of this section of Keating Loop from the county road list is a clerical error.  Hall 
stated that both sides of this section of Keating Loop are on the county road list.  After discussion, Vice-
Chairman Wilson requested that Staff Planner schedule a public hearing for the aforementioned request on 
August 17, 2023 at 5 PM. At the September 21, 2023 meeting, Chairman Wilson closed the PC and opened a 
public hearing to receive comments regarding the aforementioned request.  With no public comment, Chairman 
Wilson closed the public hearing and reopened the PC meeting.  After discussion, David Gibson made a motion 
to recommend to the environmental committee to extend Keating Loop from 0.26 miles to 0.54 miles on the 
county road list.  John Stubbs seconded and the motion passed with a vote of all ayes. 
 
ITEM 5:  PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF EXTENDING MAYFAIR DRIVE FROM 
0.22 MILES TO 0.25 MILES ON THE COUNTY ROAD LIST 
At the August 17, 2023 meeting, Road Superintendent Stanley Hall addressed the PC and requested that 
Mayfair Drive be extended from 0.22 miles to 0.25 miles on the county road list.  After discussion, Chairman 
Wilson requested that Staff Planner schedule a public hearing for the aforementioned request at the September 
21, 2023 meeting.  At the September 21, 2023 meeting, Chairman Wilson closed the PC and opened a public 
hearing to receive comments regarding the aforementioned request. Robert Shepherd stated that he was the only 
affected property owner and that he was in favor of the request. With no further public comment, Chairman 
Wilson closed the public hearing and reopened the PC meeting.  After discussion, John Stubbs made a motion 
to recommend to the environmental committee to extend Mayfair Drive from 0.22 miles to 0.25 miles on the 
county road list.  David Gibson seconded and the motion passed with a vote of all ayes. 
 
ITEM 6:  STAFF REPORT 
Staff Planner presented a report for seven (7) subdivision plats that had been administratively approved since 
the last planning commission meeting.  The administratively approved subdivision plats are as follows: 
 
            Delk Division—Final 

Jennie Delk submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of subdividing 6.21 acres into two (2) 
proposed new lots located on Highway 68.  Lot 1 would consist of 3.40 acres and an existing residential 
structure.  Lot 2 would consist of 2.97 acres, an existing residential structure and three (3) existing 
accessory structures. Lot 2 would have access to Highway 68 via a twenty-five (25) foot ingress/egress 
easement. The proposed new lots would be served by an existing two (2) inch water line and would 
comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
Kendrick Division—Final 
David Kendrick submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of creating one (1) proposed new lot 
from property larger than five (5) acres located on McCampbell Road.  The proposed new lot would 
consist of 2.17 acres, an existing residential structure and three (3) existing accessory structures.  The 
proposed new lot would be served by an existing six (6) inch water line and would comply with all 
Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
 
 



Norris Division—Final 
Jack Norris submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of subdividing 4.246 acres into two (2) 
proposed new lots located on Highway 70E and Highland Lane.  Lot 1 would consist of 2.185 acres, an 
existing residential structure and an existing accessory structure.  Lot 2 would consist of 2.061 acres, an 
existing residential structure and an existing accessory structure. The proposed new lots would be served 
by an existing ten (10) inch water line, an existing four (4) inch water line and would comply with all 
Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
Sherrill Division—Final 
Larry Sherrill submitted a final subdivision plat for the purpose of subdividing 2.12 acres into two (2) 
proposed new lots located on Hyder Loop.  Lot 1 would consist of 1.47 acres, an existing residential 
structure and an existing accessory structure.  Lot 2 would consist of 0.75 acres and is currently vacant. 
The proposed new lots would be served by an existing ten (10) inch water line, an existing four (4) inch 
water line and would comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
            Hyder Combination—Final 

Mark Hyder submitted a final combination plat for the purpose of creating one (1) proposed new lot 
from two (2) existing lots located on Bay Colony Terrace. The proposed new lot would consist of 
2.021 acres and is currently vacant.  The proposed new lot would be served by an existing four 
(4) inch water line and would comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
Balona Adjustment—Final 
Kyle Balona submitted a final lot line adjustment plat for the purpose of adjusting the common boundary 
line of two (2) existing parcels located on Plateau Road.  After the adjustment, Lot 1 would consist of 
1.59 acres and is currently vacant.  Lot 2 is larger than five (5) acres and is not subject to the jurisdiction 
of the PC. The proposed new lots would be served by an existing six (6) water line and would comply 
with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
Smith Adjustment—Final 
Ronald Smith submitted a final lot line adjustment plat for the purpose of adjusting the common 
boundary line of two (2) existing parcels located on Shadow Mountain Drive and Dunbar Road.  After 
the adjustment, Lot 1  would consist of 2.20 acres and an existing residential structure.  Lot 2 would 
consist of 1.30 acres and is currently vacant. The proposed new lots would be served by an existing six 
(6) inch water line and would comply with all Cumberland County Subdivision Regulations. 

 
ITEM 7:  DISCUSSION REGARDING SWAN ROAD 
Staff Planner presented a request on behalf of five (5) property owners that live on Swan Road (a county road).  
Trey Kerley and Jonathan Presley addressed the PC and stated that they would request the Swan Road be 
extended from 0.45 miles to 0.93 miles on the county road list.  After discussion, it was determined that not all 
of the affected property owners have signed the petition.  Staff Planner stated that all affected property owners 
should sign the petition before the public hearing.  After further discussion, After discussion, Linda Clark made 
a motion to request that Staff Planner schedule a public hearing for the aforementioned request at the October 
19, 2023 meeting. John Wedgeworth seconded and the motion passed with a vote of all ayes. 
 
ITEM 8:  OTHER BUSINESS AS NECESSARY 
PC member Terry Lowe presented a request on behalf of several citizens to add Byrd’s Creek Drive to the 
county road list.  Lowe stated that request would include the entirety of Byrd’s Creek Drive which would begin 
at the Highland Lane intersection and conclude on the other side of an existing bridge at the Larry Seiber 
property.  Seiber and Roy Meadows both stated that they own property on Byrd’s Creek Drive and that the road 
and bridge are nearly impassable. Meadows claimed that the county has maintained the road for years and that 



the county built the bridge located at the end of the road.  Meadows stated that the bridge would need 
immediate repair.  Staff Planner, Attorney Philip Burnett and Secretary Linda Clark all had concerns regarding 
the immediate maintenance requirements of the bridge.  Burnett stated that the volume of water flow should be 
tested by an engineer.  Lowe requested that Stanley Hall seek a feasibility study to determine the cost of the 
bridge maintenance.  During discussion, the PC requested that Hall attempt to obtain a cost estimate to repair 
the bridge and to bring the road up to county standards.  PC member David Gibson stated that the residents of 
Byrd’s Creek Drive should submit a petition to the County Highway Department to be added to the road list.  
Also, during other business, Taylor Dillehay presented a subdivision plat on behalf of Glenn Fuselier.  The 
proposed division did not meet the road frontage requirements of the subdivision regulations and was 
withdrawn by Dillehay from consideration. 
 
With no other business, David Gibson made a motion was made by to adjourn.  John Stubbs seconded and the 
motion passed with a vote of all ayes.  The next scheduled meeting of the Cumberland County Planning 
Commission is scheduled for September 21, 2023. 
  
 CTL 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ ________________________ 
Chairperson       Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ ________________________ 
Secretary       Date 












	cumberland.agenda.10192023
	Cook Combination—Final
	Rick Thompson Home Builder, LLC Combination—Final

	cumberland.rom.09212023
	Hyder Combination—Final
	ITEM 7:  DISCUSSION REGARDING SWAN ROAD
	Staff Planner presented a request on behalf of five (5) property owners that live on Swan Road (a county road).  Trey Kerley and Jonathan Presley addressed the PC and stated that they would request the Swan Road be extended from 0.45 miles to 0.93 mil...

	cumberland.campnakanwanadivision.10192023
	cumberland.cookcombination.10192023
	cumberland.ottodivision.10192023
	cumberland.rickthompsonhomebuilderllccombination.10192023
	Byrds Creek0001

